IN THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

RECEIVED

APR 05 2021

SC Court of Appeals

---

APPEAL FROM JASPER COUNTY

The Honorable Perry M. Buckner, Circuit Court Judge

---

APPELLATE CASE NO: 2019-001842

Alfred T. Walker, #307914,

Appellate,

VS.

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,

## ARGUMENTS

1. Did the circuit court abuse its discretion by relying on defendant's discrepancies in the transcript of testimony at trial and transportation sheets from Barnwell County Jail, was not after-discovered evidence.
2. Did the circuit court judge abuse its discretion where law enforcement continued to question the defendant in violation of his right to remain silent after repeatedly informed officers he did not wish to talk.
3. Did the circuit judge abuse its discretion, where at the time Appellant spoke to law enforcement, was intoxicated, under the influence of drugs, and diagnosed with antisocial personality disorder, was not after discovered evidence.
4. Did the circuit court judge abuse its discretion, where the State failed to produce defendant's October 20, 2000 "waiver of Miranda Rights Form and Mental Health Records as a juvenile," was not after discovered evidence.
5. The lower court erred where the judge by passed a "Categorical Exemption Test" by not ruling on Appellant's motion "in the alternative to amend the sentence" where Walker was a mere eighteen year old at the time of the offense, was abuse of discretion.

S T A T E M E N T   O F   T H E   C A S E

The Appellant Alfred T. Walker is an inmate currently confined within the South Carolina Department of Corrections. Appellant has filed an Appeal from the Jasper County Circuit Court, Perry M. Buckner III, denial of his Motion for a New Trial. He was indicted for two (2) counts of murder (2001-GS-06-00118; 2001-GS-06-00119), Burglary in the Second Degree (2001-GS-06-00120), Assault and Battery with intent to kill (2001-GS-06-00121), Criminal Conspiracy (2001-GS-06-00122), Armed Robbery (2001-GS-06-00123), and Possession of a Weapon during the commission of a Violent Crime (2001-GS-06-00-00134) The State gave notice of intention to seek the death penalty on March 26, 2001.

Before the third day of testimony in the jury trial, March 8, 2005, the Appellant entered an Alfred Plea to both counts of Murder and entered guilty pleas to the remaining charges. A Notice of Appeal was filed and perfected. Following submission of an ANDERS BRIEF, the Appeal was dismissed. STATE v. WALKER, Op. No. 2008-up-021 (S.C.Ct App. filed January 10, 2008), the Remittitur was sent January 28, 2008.

The Appellant filed an Application seeking Post Conviction Relief in Barnwell County (2006-CP-06-0277) on November 15, 2006, while his Appeal was pending. The State made its Return on June 4, 2007. The Post Conviction action was stayed pending the outcome

of the Appeal. The State amended its Return on or about February 1, 2009, An evidentiary hearing on the PCR was convened on February 3, 2009. The Appellant testified at the PCR hearing, as did his sister, Latasha Bradshaw, and his two previous lawyers, Glenn Walters and Carl Grant. At the hearing the Appellant alleged ineffective assistance of trial counsel, that his guilty plea was involuntary, and due process violation under MIRANDA violation. The Honorable Doyet A Early, III denied the PCR by Order dated March 5, 2009, and filed on March 10, 2009. On June 1, 2010, Appellant filed a second PCR Application seeking a belated Appeal of his first PCR Application pursuant to AUSTIN v. STATE, 409 S.E.2d 395 (S.C.1991). The Court entered a Consent Order dismissing the Second PCR Application and granting a Belated Appeal of Appellant's First PCR Application.

On October 7, 2011 Appellant filed a Notice of Appeal of the Court's denial of his first PCR Application. The South Carolina Supreme Court denied his Appeal on November 18, 2011. On January 25, 2012 the Appellant filed a third PCR Application (2012-CP-06-0034) which was still pending as Appellant filed a Habeas Corpus Petition with the Federal District Court on June 5, 2012. The Habeas petition was denied by Order filed August 26, 2013. The third PCR Application was subsequently denied by Order dated July 2, 2013 and filed July 11, 2013.

"In criminal cases, the Appellate Court sits to review errors of law only." STATE v. VICKS, 862 S.E.2d 275, 279 (Ct.App.2009) (quoting STATE v. WILSON, 545 S.E.2d 827, 829 (2001)). The

Appellate Court is "bound by the trial court's factual findings where they are clearly erroneous." Id. (quoting WILSON, 545 S.E.2d at 829). The reviewing court "does not re-evaluate the facts based on its own view of the preponderance of the evidence but simply determines whether the trial court's ruling is supported by any evidence." STATE v. SLOCUMB, 770 S.E.2d 436, 438 (Ct.App.2015). "A sentence will not be overturned absent an abuse of discretion when the ruling is based on an error of law or a factual conclusion without evidentiary support" IN RE M.B.H., 692 S.E.2d 541, 542 (2010).

STANDARD OF REVIEW

This Matter came before the Honorable Perry M. Buckner, III, at the Jasper County Courthouse, pursuant to the Appellant's Motion for a New Trial based on after discovered evidence, or, in the alternative, to amend the sentence imposed on the above referenced indictments. The hearing was conducted on September 26, 29, 2019. The Appellant was present for the hearing and represented by his attorney W. Benjamin McClain, Jr. of Greenville, SC. The State was represented at the hearing by second circuit dupty solicitor, David Miller. Prior to the hearing, a number of stipulations of counsel were placed on the record. First, counsel stipulated that the transcripts of the trial proceedings in the underlying case was incomplete, but that all efforts had been made to obtain a complete transcript. Despite the failure to obtain a complete transcript, both parties agreed the missing transcript pages were not relevant to the pending motion. Secondly, the attorneys and defendant consented to the hearing of this Motion in Jasper County, instead of barnwell County, where the original trial took place. It was then noted that South Carolina Court Administration had assigned the Court of General Sessions non-jury jurisdiction for Barnwell county to hear the motion. Finally, the parties stipulated that the motion had been filed and would be heard, pursuant to RULE 29 of the South Carolina Rules of Criminal Procedure.

Appellant's (defendant) attorney, Benjamin McClain post-trial motions Appellant motions for a new trial are governed by RULE 29, SCRCrim.P. RULE 29 (A) provides relevant part; "[E]xcept for motions for new trials based on after discovered evidence, post trial motions shall be made within (10) days after the imposition of the sentence". RULE 29(A), SCRCrim.P. However, a motion for a new trial based on after discovered evidence must be made within one (1) year after the date of actual discovery of the evidence by the defendant or after the date when the evidence could have been ascertained by the exercise of reasonable diligence. RULE 29(b), SCRCrim.P. James T. Burgess, a private investigator with much law enforcement experience, at Tr.Pg. 8, lines 6-25 thru Tr. Pg. 18, lines 1-25 testified at the hearing that he retrieved the two (2) transportation sheets from the archives. Mr. Burgess' affidavit and his attached report of Burgess Investigations & Associates, Inc., buttress this fact. It is uncontroverted that the date of discovery of these transportation sheets was on Monday, June 11, 2018.

the defendant's Motion was filed on June 3, 2019, at 3:26pm. Clearly this motion was timely made, pursuant to RULE 29(b), SCRCrim.P. The defendant himself, obviously could not have come into possession and discovery of this new evidence on his own. Due to the transcripts of the trial proceedings prior to the JACKSON v. DENNO hearing at Tr. Pg. 2365 thru Pg. 2518, line 25 on the history of the procedure in this case, Nowhere does it appear that this evidence could have

been ascertained by the exercise of reasonable diligence. Nowhere in the state's discovery motion is it established that this evidence.

This Appeal is as follows:

## A R G U M E N T

1. THE CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY NOT RELYING ON THE DISCREPANCIES IN THE TRANSCRIPT TESTIMONY AT THE JACKSON VS. DENNO HEARING AND 29(b) EVIDENTIARY HEARING TRANSPORTATION SHEETS DISCOVERED BY JAMES T. BURGESS, WAS NOT AFTER DISCOVERED EVIDENCE.

The term "after discovered evidence" refers to evidence presented at the evidentiary hearing from investigator James T. Burgess at Tr. Pg. 7 thru Tr. Pg. 18, lines 1 - 25 on the transportation sheets dated October 19,20,21, & 25, 2000, which existed at the time of trial, but of which the Appellant was excusably ignorant. Thus, this evidence only became manifested after trial and, the judge abused his discretion in denying Appellant's 29(b) motion. Trial testimony at Tr. Pg. 2421 thru Tr; Pg. 2425, lines 1 - 18 from Chief Investigator Rodney Pruitt testified that on October 18, 2000, the defendant stated, "I don't want to talk anymore." If these transportation sheets were produced at the JACKSON vs. DENNO hearing, the State's interrogations and statements from October 19,20,21, & 25, 2000 would have been suppressed, where the State completed its discovery before trial. They are material to the issue of the continuing questioning the Appellant after he invoked his right to remain silent, and this evidence is not merely cumulative or impeaching. STATE v. HAULCOMB, 195 S.E.2d 601 - 606 (1973). After carefully reviewing

this particular remedy on this evidence, it encompasses a claim based on facts not known to exist at the time of trial. Tr. Pg. 2431 thru Tr. Pg. 2518, lines 1 - 25, and reflects upon Appellant's innocence and moral culpability in this capital case. But, nevertheless reminded indiscoverable without the assistance of investigator Burgress. Appellant moved for a new trial on the basis of such being based on the testimony and affidavit of investigator Burgess to the effect that a family member hired him to investigate the case concerning witnesses at the county jail. Appellant further claims that, the discrepancies in the transcript and transportation sheet dated October 20, 2000 on investigator Wayne Martin name was scratched out and replaced by "Rice" at Tr. Pg. 2450 thru Tr. Pg. 2451, lines 1 - 5, States Exhibit 3,4,5, and 6 offered for identification purposes at Tr. Pg. 2451, lines 18 - 21, Investigator Martin Stated:

Q ... "All right, sir, so tell me the circumstances of going back to the county jail on 10/20?"

A ... "Okay, I transported him to my office at the solicitor office."

Tr. Pg. 2455, lines 14-16; Tr. Pg. 2455, line 19.

Q ... "what did you do with the defendant Alfred WALKER"?

A ... "transported him back to the county jail."

A ... "After transporting Alfred back to the county jail."

Also the transportation sheet dated October 20, 2000, doesn't list who ordered Appellant to be pick up defendant from the county nor what for as listed on October 19, 21, & 25, transportation sheets. September 26, 2019 the Appellant testified at the hearing on the 29(b) motion at Tr. Pg., 24, lines 3 - 25 thru Tr. Pg. 25, lines 1 - 8, that on october 20, 2000 Office Martin transported him to the solicitor's office, and he did not want to talk. Tr. Pg. 30, lines 21 - 23; Tr. Pg. 32, lines 2 - 9; Tr. Pg. 54, lines 16 - 19, the solicitor stated:

Q ... "there is no reference anywhere in the transcripts about you going to the Barnwell Police Department with Glen Rice (phonetic) on October 20th"?

Turning to the facts in this case, there is evidence the circuit court judge did abuse his discretion in the order denying Appellant' 29(b) motion. Evidentiary hearing Tr. Pg. 71, lines 24 - 25 thru Tr. Pg. 75, lines 1 - 4 the circuit court judge had the full record from the JACKSON v. DENNO; Investigator Birgess' affidavit and transportation sheets. The traditional five factors of after discovered evidence test presumed by the circuit court judge in the order, who was in position to weigh this evidence and testimony against that presented at the JACKSON v. DENNO hearing

and assess where the October 20, 2000 statement would have been suppressed, seemed to be hampered in that assessment. IN RE REISE, 146 Wash.App. 772; 192 P.3d 949-954 (2008). Indeed, the traditional after discovered evidence factors are "difficult" in this case, if not impossible to apply where the Appellant entered a ALFORD plea. Relief is appropriate where Appellant presented evidence meeting the criteria that (1) ... has been discovered after the entry of the plea and in the exercise of reasonable diligence, could not have been discovered prior to the entry of the plea; (2) ... the the evidence discovered is of such weight and quality that, under the facts and circumstances of this particular case, the "interest of justice" requires the guilty plea to be vacated. The circuit court's order make no reference to these factors, nor as to how Appellant could have retrived this evidence from the county jail archives without investigator Burgess' help. Where the State's strength of the case against Appellant was the statements, which is relative weak without these statements, SEE: Tr. Pg. 2420 thru Tr. Pg. 2425, lines 1 - 19. Appellant's trial counsel made the determination that it was to his advantage to plead guilty to avoid the death penalty. JAMISON v. STATE, 765 S.E.2d at 472 (2014) (Pleicones, J., dissenting in a separate opinion in which Beatty, J., concurred ) The credibility of this after discovered evidence offered by the Appellant in support of his 29(b) motion ia a matter that was not determined by the circuit court judge to whom it was offered. In him, not this court, resided the power to weigh this evidence , and his judgment is now requested to be disturbed

on this appeal of error for abuse of discretion. STATE v. CORN, 77 S.E.2d at 81 (1953). Moreover, the testimony of this after discovered evidence surely would not be evidence available or attainable by a prisoner housed in the county jail before trial. SEE: Evidentiary Hearing Tr. Pg. 23, lines 14-25 thru Tr. Pg. 31 5-6. Surely, the evidence could not be considered public records available to a diligent prisoner within the scope of a Brady Motion, ANDERSON VS. LEEKS, 248 S.E.2d 120 (1978).

2. THE CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE ABUSED IT'S DISCRETION WHERE THE TRANSPORTATION SHEETS SHOWS LAW ENFORCEMENT CONTINUED TO QUESTION DEFENDANT IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHT TO REMAIN SILENT AFTER REPEATEDLY INFORMING THE OFFICERS HE "DID NOT WISH TO TALK", WAS NOT AFTER DISCOVERED EVIDENCE.

In this case sub judice, Walker maintains his statement made on October 18, 19, 20, 21 and 25 were not freely and voluntarily given because they were induced by a promise to save him and his family. At the 29(b) evidentiary at Tr. Pg. 26, lines 8 - 24; Tr. Pg. 28, lines 1 - 5, 8 - 21; Tr. Pg. 29, lines 18 - 25 thru Tr. Pg. 30, lines 1 - 14; Tr. Pg. 33, lines 1 - 15 thru Tr. Pg. 39, lines 1 - 3; Tr. Pg. 41, lines 5 - 11; Tr. Pg. 42, lines 1 - 5; Tr. Pg. 49, lines 1 - 12; Tr. Pg. 59, lines 1 - 19; and Tr. Pg. 60, lines 19 - 25 thru Tr. Pg. 61, lines 1 - 12 Appellant's testimony was and is of a concern of whether he initiated contact with law enforcement October 19, 20, 21 and 25.

During the JACKSON v. DENNO hearing at TR. Pg. 2415, lines 7 - 22; Tr. Pg. 2420, lines 19 - 25 thru Tr. Pg. 2425, lines 1 - 18; Tr. Pg. 2431, lines 21 - 25 thru Tr. Pg. 2518, lines 1 - 25 Appellant was mirandarized October 18, 2000 and stated "I don't want to talk," but not appointed an attorney until after law enforcement had finished their interrogations. The courts have observed a statement of this magnitude in such an assertion of the right requesting for Counsel? In DAVIS v. U.S., 114 S.Ct. 2350 (1994). The request made is an unambiguously request for counsel. SMITH v. ILLINOIS, 105 S.Ct. 490 (1984). Although need not speak with the discrimination of an "Oxford don," he spoke well enough to articulate his desire to have counsel present, and sufficiently clear that a reasonable police officer in the circumstances understood that the statement to be a request for an attorney. The statement meet requisite level of Clarity. MORGAN v. BURBINE, 106 S.Ct. 1135 (1147.n.4)(1986)("the interrogation must cease until an attorney is present only if the individual states that he wants an attorney). Appellant's invitation to extend EDWARDS v. ARIZONA, 101 S.Ct. at 1885, to this case would required law enforcement officers to cease questioning on October 19, 20, 21, and 25, immediately upon the making of the ambiguous or equivocal reference to an attorney. The rationale underlying EDWARDS in this case, is that the police did not respect appellant's wishes regarding his right to have an attorney present during the custodial interrogation on October 19, 20, 21, and 25, 2000. Officer Rodney Pruitt conducting the questioning October 18, 2000 at the JACKSON v. DENNO hearing admitted that he reasonably knew from the Appellant's

statement "I don't want to talk" was a want for a lawyer. The Rule requiring the immediate cessation of questioning Walker, is designed to protect him while in police custody from being badgered by police officers WYRICK v. FIELDS, 103 S.Ct. 394, 395 (1982); RHODE ISLAND v. INNIS, 446 U.S. at 291, 298 ( ). The fifth Amendment provides "No person shall be ... compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself, United States Constitution Amendment IV. The United States Supreme Court announced "[t]he prosecution may not use statements whether exculpatory or inculpatory stemming from custodial interrogation of the defendant unless it demonstrates the use of procedural safeguards."

During the JACKSON v. DENNO hearing and 29(b) motion hearing the circuit court judge did examine the totality of the circumstances surrounding the statements made to determine whether the state had carried its burden of showing the October 19, 20, 21, and 25 statements were made voluntarily. SCHNECKLOTH v. BUSTAMONTE, 93 S.Ct. 2041 (1973). The record consist of conflicting evidence as to whether Walker's statements are voluntary : it is, in the first instance the province of the trial court to determine the factual issue by the preponderance of the evidence. STATE v. HOWARD, 374 S.E.2d at 290 (1988).

The test of voluntariness to apply in this case is whether Walker will was 'overborn' by the circumstances surrounding the given statements. The due process test takes into consideration the totality of all the surrounding circumstances - both the characteristics of

the accused and the details of the interrogation, such as, the background, experience and conduct of Walker. STATE v. LEDFORD, 567 S.E.2d 904, 906 (Ct.App.2002); STATE v. Franklin, 382 S.E.2d 911, 914 (1989); STATE v. CHILDS, 385 S.E.2d 839, 842 (1989); STATE v. CORNS, 426 S.E.2d 324, 327 (Ct.App.1992). Those potential circumstances include not only the crucial element of the police coercion, COLORADO v. CONNELLY, 107 S.Ct. 515 (1986). The length of the interrogation. ASKCRAFF v. TENNESSEE, 64 S.Ct. 921 (1944). Its location, RECK v. PATE 81 S.Ct. 1541 (1961). Its continuity LEYRA v. DENNO, 74 S.Ct. 716 (1954), the defendant's maturity HALEY v. OHIO. 68 S.Ct. 302 (1948) (opinion of Douglas J.), Education, CLEWIS v. TEXAS, 87 S.Ct. 1338 (1967), physical condition GREENWALD v. WISCONSIN, 88 S.Ct. 1152 (1968)(per curiam), and mental health FIKES v. ALABAMA, 77 S.Ct. 281 (1957). They also include the failure of police to advise the defendant of his right to remain silent and to have counsel present during custodial interrogation, HAYNES v. WASHINGTON 83 S.Ct. 1336 (1963) The Courts have observed Walker's concept of his privilege against self-incrimination encompasses the right to be free from being penalized for his exercise is well established. STATE v. RABON, 272 S.E.2d 634, 635 (1980); STATE v. SMITH, 234 S.E.2d 19, 21 (1977); STATE v. ROCHESTER, 391 S.E.2d 244, 246 (1990) The circuit court judge's order fail to recognize Walker's length of custody in the county jail before a lawyer was appointed, police misrepresentations of evidence, isolation of Walker as a minor while housed in the county jail, and the threats of violence and promises to protect Walker's family and promises of leniency. These coercive police activities

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