**RECEIVED**  
**Dec 22 2020**  
**SC Court of Appeals**

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM BARNWELL COUNTY  
The Honorable Perry M. Buckner, III, Circuit Court Judge  
Appellate Case No. 2019-001842

THE STATE,.....RESPONDENT

v.

ALFRED T. WALKER #307914,.....APPELLANT

---

**FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT**

---

ALAN WILSON  
Attorney General

DONALD J. ZELENKA  
Deputy Attorney General

MELODY J. BROWN  
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

TOMMY EVANS, JR.  
Assistant Attorney General  
P.O. Box 11549  
Columbia, South Carolina 29211  
(803) 734-0265

J. STROM THURMOND  
Solicitor Second Judicial Circuit  
P.O. Drawer 3368

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

### **ARGUMENT**

- 1. The Circuit Court judge did not abuse its discretion by not relying on any discrepancies in the transcript testimony against the transportation sheets, because no discrepancy existed.**

The Appellant appeals the final decision of the trial court in the denial of his motion for new trial based on after discovered evidence. In the Supreme Court case of *State v. Spann*, 334 S.C. 618, 513 S.E.2d 98 (1999) the Court decided that in order to award an inmate a new trial based on after discovered evidence certain elements must be satisfied. In *Spann*, it states:

In order to warrant the granting of a new trial on the ground of after-discovered evidence the movant must show the evidence: (1) is such as will probably change the result if a new trial is granted; (2) has been discovered since the trial; (3) could not have been discovered

before the trial by the exercise of due diligence; (4) is material to the issue; and (5) is not merely cumulative or impeaching.

*Id.*, 334 S.C. at 619, 513 S.E.2d at 99.

The Appellant argues that he is entitled to a new trial due to the fact the transportation sheets revealed a discrepancy between the testimony of the officers during his *Jackson v. Denno* hearing and what actually occurred. The trial court was correct in not granting this motion due to the fact this information could have easily been discovered prior to trial, and this information would not have changed the outcome of the trial due to the fact that no discrepancy exists.

The Appellant argues that these transportation sheets would reveal that questioning continued by the authorities after he informed them that he no longer wished to speak to them. The Appellant's position is that if these sheets were revealed to the court during his *Jackson v. Denno* hearing, the trial judge would have been inclined not to allow his statements into evidence. This would have changed the outcome of his trial.

When an inmate is attempting to get the court to re-open a case and grant a new trial based on after discovered evidence he must satisfy the above referenced elements. The first element is that the result of the trial would have been different if the evidence was found before trial. The Appellant argues that there was some discrepancy between what was testified and what occurred. He feels these transport sheets would prove this. The sheets that were provided to the court during the motion for new trial revealed that the Appellant was transported to the courthouse or the Barnwell police department on October 19, 20, and 21. These transports were already stated in Investigator Martin's testimony. And upon each period of questioning, the Appellant was read and waived his *Miranda* rights. Statements elicited during interrogation are admissible if the prosecution can establish that the suspect knowingly and intelligently waived his privilege against self-incrimination and his right to retain or appoint counsel. *State v. Kennedy*, 333 S.C. 426, 429,

510 S.E.2d 714, 715 (1998). It was clear though the testimony of Investigator Martin that the Appellant waived his *Miranda* rights, and the Appellant constantly initiated interrogations by contacting jail personnel to inform Investigator Martin that he wished to speak with him. The introduction of this evidence would not have changed this fact nor made his statements to the police inadmissible.

This evidence also could have been discovered prior to trial. During the motion for new trial the Appellant hired investigator John Thomas Burgess. Investigator Burgess testified that he obtained these records the same day they were requested. (R. p. 36 lines 20-25) The Appellant knew he spoke to law enforcement three times while incarcerated in the county jail. He could have easily informed his counsel that he was transported to give these statements. His attorneys could have then easily obtained these sheets as Mr. Burgess did fourteen years later. These sheets are not material to the issue, and are also cumulative and impeaching. This material does not reveal any wrongdoing that occurred due to the fact Investigator Martin testified about the interrogations that these sheets reflect. These sheets just reveal what was already testified to during pre-trial. This information did not raise to the level to allow for a new trial. The decision of the trial court was correct and should be upheld.

- 2. The circuit court did not abuse its discretion because the transportation sheets did not reveal the Appellant was asked questions after he expressed he did not wish to talk.**

The Appellant argues that he was continued to be questioned after he expressed to the authorities he no longer wished to talk. He did express to Investigator Pruitt that he did not wish to answer any further questions. Due to this expression the trial court granted the Appellant's motion to exclude any statement given to Investigator Pruitt. After this decision, however, the Appellant made it clear he wanted to meet law enforcement in order to talk with them.

During trial the Solicitor argued that the wishes of the Appellant not to answer questions were “scrupulously honored,” as required in the United States Supreme Court case of *Michigan v. Mosley*. In *Mosley*, the Court determined:

A reasonable and faithful interpretation of the *Miranda* opinion must rest on the intention of the Court in that case to adopt “fully effective means...to notify the person of his right to silence and to assure that the exercise of the right will be scrupulously honored...” **The critical safeguard identified in the passage at issue is a person’s “right to cut off questioning.”** Through the exercise of his option to terminate questioning he can control the time at which questioning occurs, the subjects discussed, and the duration of the interrogation. The requirement that law enforcement authorities must respect a person’s exercise of that option counteracts the coercive pressures of the custodial setting. We therefore conclude that the admissibility of statements obtained after the person in custody has decided to remain silent depends under *Miranda* on **whether his “right to cut off questioning” was “scrupulously honored.”**

*Michigan v. Mosley*, 423 U.S. 96, 102-104, 96 S.Ct. 321, 46 L.Ed.2d 313 (1975)(emphasis in original).

In interpreting *Mosley* Courts have set forth five factors to determine if the questioning was “scrupulously honored:”

(1) Whether the suspect was given *Miranda* warnings at the first interrogation; (2) whether police immediately ceased the interrogation when the suspect indicated he did not want to answer questions; (3) whether police resumed questioning the suspect only after the passage of a significant period of time; (4) whether police provided a fresh set of *Miranda* warnings before the second interrogation; and, (5) whether the second interrogation was restricted to a crime that had not been subject of the earlier interrogation.

*Burket v. Angelone*, 208 F.3d 172 (4<sup>th</sup> Cir. 2000).

In viewing the facts relayed to the court during the *Jackson v. Denno* hearing, it was correctly determined by the trial court that the Appellant wishing not to be questioned was “scrupulously

honored,” so the continuation of questioning by Investigator Martin upon request by the Appellant was lawful.

The Appellant was read his *Miranda* rights prior to each interrogation. The Court did not allow any statements made by the Appellant to Investigator Pruitt due to the fact he did request not to answer any further questions. It was testified that there was a passage of ninety minutes between the questioning of Investigator Pruitt and Investigator Martin, which was a sufficient passage of time to resume questioning.<sup>2</sup> Investigator Martin testified that he provided a fresh reminder of his *Miranda* warnings before each interrogation and provided him a written warning that he signed. The courts have held that the second interrogation can be related to the same crime. A second interrogation is not rendered unconstitutional simply because it involves the same subject matter discussed during the first interview. *Jackson v. Wyrick*, 730 F.3d 1177, 1180 (8<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1984), *cert. denied* 469 U.S. 849, 105 S.Ct. 167, 83 L.Ed.2d 102 (1984). As long as new *Miranda* warnings are given, and initial requests to remain silent are scrupulously honored, statements from subsequent interrogations on the same subject are admissible. *United States v. Finch*, 557 F.2d 1234 (8<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1977), *cert. denied* 434 U.S. 927, 98 S.Ct. 409, 54 L.Ed.2d 285 (1977)

**3. The Court did not abuse discretion because it did not allow a new trial due to the Appellant stating he was intoxicated at the time the crime occurred.**

The Appellant argues that the trial court abused discretion due to the fact it did not consider him for a new trial even though while he gave his statement, he was supposedly under the influence of drugs. During the motion for new trial the Appellant made some accusations as to his state of intoxication during questioning, and promises made to him regarding protection for him and his

---

<sup>2</sup> *Mills v. Commonwealth*, 996 S.W.2d 473 (Ky. 1999), *cert denied*, 528 U.S. 1164, 120 S.Ct. 1182, 145 L.Ed.2d 1088 (No *Miranda* violation where defendant spoke with second officer, after invoking right to remain silent with first officer, though encounter with second officer came only about 20 minutes after invocation of right and involved same crime.)

family. The court determined that the Appellant's claims were not credible. (R. p. 258, 262) The trial court has the authority to determine if a witness is credible. *State v. Johnson*, 413 S.C. 458, 776 S.E.2d 367, 372 (2015).

The Appellant failed to present any evidence revealing that he was intoxicated to the point of permanent insanity, which is the only way voluntary intoxication can be used as a defense. Voluntary intoxication, where it has not produced permanent insanity, is never an excuse or a defense to a crime, regardless of whether the intent involved be general or specific. *State v. Vaughn*, 268 S.C. 119, 125, 232 S.E.2d 328, 330 (1977). The trial court had only to believe either the Appellant or Investigator Martin. The trial court deemed Investigator Martin more credible when he testified. That would be the most logical conclusion due to the fact the Appellant was questioned four times over a period of four days. There would not be a possibility that he could remain under the influence for this time period without having access to drugs. During that period he was an inmate within the county jail. There was no evidence presented that any one provided the Appellant drugs during this period of incarceration. Since the Appellant has provided no evidence of his intoxication for the entire period of questioning, the court was correct in not awarding the Appellant a new trial. It is a decision that should be upheld by this court. Credibility findings are treated as factual findings, and therefore, the appellate inquiry is limited to reviewing whether the trial court's factual findings are supported by any evidence in the record. *State v. Banda*, 371 S.C. 245, 639 S.E.2d 36, 39 (2006). Appellate court is bound by the trial courts factual findings unless clearly erroneous. *State v. Preslar*, 364 S.C. 466, 472, 613 S.E.2d 381, 384 (Ct. App. 2005).

**4. The Court did not abuse discretion because the solicitor did not have the Appellant's juvenile mental health records, so there exist no violation of Rule 5.**

The Appellant argues that the court abused discretion due to the fact the state failed to produce his advice of rights form waving *Miranda*. The advice of rights form was identified by Investigator Martin. (R. p. 168 lines 2-3) There was no doubt that the Appellant waived his rights to an attorney each time he was interviewed by law enforcement.

The Appellant also argues that the Solicitor did not provide his juvenile medical records in discovery. Those records was not in the possession of the solicitor. In order for the solicitor to obtain those records they would either need a court order or consent from the Appellant himself. There has been no evidence presented in the record that the solicitor had ever requested an order from the court or consent from the Appellant to obtain those records. The solicitor is not obligated to present any material in discovery that they do not have in their possession. Pursuant to rule 5:

**Documents and Tangible Objects.** Upon request of the defendant the prosecution shall permit the defendant to inspect and copy books, papers, documents, photographs, tangible objects, buildings, or places, or copies or portions thereof, which are **within the possession, custody or control of the prosecution**, and which are material to the preparation of his defense or are intended for use by the prosecution as evidence in chief at trial, or were obtained from or belong to the defendant.

**Reports of Examinations and Tests.** Upon request of a defendant the prosecution shall permit the defendant to inspect and copy any results or reports of physical or mental examinations, and of scientific tests or experiments, or copies thereof, which are **within the possession, custody or control of the prosecution**, the existence of which is known, or by the exercise of due diligence may become known, to the attorney for the possession, and which are material to the preparation of the defense or are intended for use by the prosecution as evidence in chief at trial.

Rule 5(C)(D) SCRCrimP (emphasis added)

The Appellant never presented any evidence that his juvenile medical records were ever in the possession of the solicitor. Any medical records would be evidence that would be used in mitigation, the solicitor would have no reason to have this information in their possession. It would be more likely in the possession of the Appellant's counsel. Since no proof had been presented that the solicitor had any of this information in their possession, there exists no a violation of rule 5.

This argument also does not fall under the parameter of after discovered evidence. Any juvenile medical record was available prior to trial and there is no evidence that if these records were presented, the outcome would have been different. This court should not consider this argument viable due to the fact it does not pertain to what was presented to the trial court regarding what the Appellant was seeking, a new trial based on after discovered evidence.

**5. The lower court did not abuse discretion by not ruling to amend the Appellant's sentence. The Appellant was eighteen when he committed the crime so he was given a lawful sentence of life without parole.**

The Appellant argues that the trial court abused its discretion when they did not consider his motion to amend his sentence. The authority to change a sentence rests solely and exclusively in the hands of the sentencing judge within the exercise of his discretion. *State v. Smith*, 276 S.C. 494, 498, 280 S.E.2d 200, 202 (1981).

The Appellant argues that the trial court sentencing him to life without the possibility of parole should be considered an abuse of discretion. The Appellant argues that this is a disproportionate punishment because scientific research shows that his class of individuals share the identical mitigating characteristics as juvenile offenders.

In *Miller v. Alabama*, 567 U.S. 460, 132 S.Ct. 2455 (2012) the United States Supreme Court decided that sentencing a juvenile to a mandatory sentence of life without the possibility of

parole violates the Eighth Amendment of the United States Constitution. In the case of *Aiken v. Byers*, 410 S.C. 534, 765 S.E.2d 572 (2014) the South Carolina Supreme Court took the identical measures as in *Miller* and applied it to South Carolina juvenile defendants. Since the Appellant was the age of eighteen when he committed this offense, he was considered an adult; therefore, neither of these decisions apply.

In *Miller*, the United States Supreme Court decided that the eighth amendment forbids a sentencing scheme that mandates life imprisonment *without* the possibility of parole for juvenile offenders. In *Aiken v. Byers*, the South Carolina Supreme Court made the identical determination and applied it to South Carolina juveniles serving sentences of life without the possibility of parole. Since the Appellant was the age of eighteen at the time he committed the offense, he was not considered a juvenile. The trial court did the correct thing by not considering any resentencing.

In their plain language both the *Miller* and *Aiken* decisions only apply to cases where an inmate as a juvenile received a life sentence *without* the possibility of parole. This does not currently apply to the Appellant. But only to individuals who were under the age of eighteen when they committed the crime. In *Aiken v. Byers* the Supreme Court determined:

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